



CONSTITUTION OF SPORTS BOARD PUNJAB

AMENDED UP TO 2012

The Punjab Gazette

Published by Authority

LAHORE, TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 1985

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

NOTIFICATION

The 8th April, 1985

No.SO(Sports)1-5/83 – In exercise of the powers conferred under Section 4 of the Pakistan Sports (Development and Control) Ordinance, 1962 read with Article 268(1)(6) of the Constitution of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan, the Governor of the Punjab is pleased to approve the following Constitution of Sports Board Punjab (SBP), for the development and regulation of sports in the Province.

1. Short title and Commencement:-

- (i) The charter of functions, responsibilities and authority may be called the Constitution of the Sports Board Punjab.
- (ii) This constitution shall come into force at once.

2. Definitions:-

In this Constitution unless there is anything repugnant in the subject or context:

- (a) “**Association**” means an association of any sports or game duly registered with the Board.
- (b) “**Board**” means the Sports Board Punjab.
- (c) “**Bye-laws**” means the Bye-Laws of any Association.
- (d) “**Chairman**” means the Chairman of the Board.

- (e) **“Vice Chairman”** means the Vice-Chairman of the Board.
- (f) **“Secretary”** means the # **Managing Director Sports Board Punjab** / Ex-Officio Secretary of the Board.
- (g) **“Tehsil Committee”** means the Tehsil Sports Committee of the Board.
- (h) **“District Committee”** means the District Sports Committee of the Board.
- (i) **Omitted by #**
- (j) **“Executive Committee”** means Executive Committee of the Board.
- (k) **(Substituted by #) “Subordinate Offices”** means District and Tehsil/Town Sports Committees in the Punjab and such other organizations and stadia etc. like the Dring Stadium Sports Complex, Bahawalpur, Iqbal Park Sports Complex, Lahore and other sports facilities available in Nishtar Park Sports Complex”.
- (l) **“Fund”** means the fund of the Board.
- (m) **“Government”** means the Government of the Punjab.
- (n) **“Meeting”** means meeting of the Board.
- (o) **“Member”** means a member of the Board.
- (p) **“Regulation”** means the regulations made under this Constitution.
- (q) **“Rules”** means the rules made under this Constitution.
- (r) **“Club”** means a club organized for Sports/Games and duly registered by a District or Tehsil Committee.

3. The Board:-

- (1) The Board shall be a body corporate having perpetual succession and common seal with powers subject to the provisions of this Constitution to acquire and hold property both movable and immovable, and may by the said name sue and be sued.

- (2) The Headquarter of the Board shall be at Lahore and the Directorate-General of Sports Punjab shall provide Secretariat of the Board.

(Substituted by # #)

4. The Board shall be composed as under—

(1)	Chief Minister Punjab	Patron-in-Chief
(2)	Mian Hamza Shahbaz Sharif, MNA	Chairman
(3)	Mr. Aamer Suhail	Vice-Chairman
(4)	Secretary, Youth Affairs, Sports, Archeology & Tourism Department	Member
(5)	Secretary Finance	Member
(6)	Secretary LG&CD	Member
(7)	Member (Colonies), Board of Revenue	Member
(8)	Inspector General of Police	Member
(9)	Secretary Higher Education	Member
(10)	Secretary Schools Education	Member
(11)	Secretary P&D	Member
(12)	Secretary Industries	Member
(13)	Director General Sports Punjab/ Managing Director Sports Board Punjab	Secretary
(14)	Mr. Ahsan Iqbal, MNA	Member
(15)	01 MPA (to be co-opted by the Chairman)	Member
(16)	05 Sports Veterans (to be co-opted by the Chairman)	Member
(17)	02 Principals / Instructors of Physical Education Institutions (01 Male & 01 Female) (to be co-opted by the Chairman)	Member
(18)	Expert on Marketing (to be co-opted by the Chairman)	Member
(19)	Advisor on Media (Sports) (to be co-opted by the Chairman)	Member

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab Sports Department dated: 03-03-2006

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 09-12-2011

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 04-06-2012

Note:- (Firstly some amendments made by # Thereafter whole substituted by # #)

5. The Board shall have powers to frame rules and regulations with the prior approval of the Government, for the transaction of its business.
6. The Board shall have power to co-opt additional members on the Board, with the prior approval of the Government to give representation to such other interests as may be necessary.
7. The tenure of the Board shall be # three years and on expiry shall be re-constituted through a Government Notification.
8. If the seat of a non-official member becomes vacant during the term of his office, the vacancy may be filled by the Government and the member so appointed shall hold office for the residue of such term.
9. **“Removal of a Member — (Substituted by #)**
 - (1) The Board may by a majority vote and through an order in writing, remove a non official member if he,
 - (a) refuses or fails to discharge or becomes incapable of discharging his duties under this Constitutions or is guilty of mis-conduct.
 - (b) has without reasonable cause, absented himself from three consecutive meetings of the Board and
 - (c) has been convicted of an offence involving moral turpitude.
 - (2) A non official member may resign in writing from his office addressed to the Chairman”.

10. Functions of the Board:-

The following shall be the functions of the Board:-

- (i) To organize, promote and develop sports in the Province.
- (ii) To arrange training and coaching programmes.
- (iii) To ensure mass participation in sports and Games by organizing sports competitions/tournaments in the Province.
- (iv) To maintain liaison and co-ordinate with the Pakistan Sports Board, other Provincial Sports Boards, National and provincial sports associations.
- (v) To utilize funds provided by the Government as grant-in-aid for the promotion of sports and also release annual/special grants-in-aid to sports associations, committee, clubs and other sports organizations in the Province.

- (vi) **(substituted by #)** To register Sports associations, hold their elections under the supervision of the Board/District Sports Committees and to act as arbitrator for the resolution of the disputes among the parallel organizations.
- (vii) To provide extension services to the in-service personnel in the form of refresher courses, training and coaching programmes, seminars, conference and workshops, etc.
- (viii) To promote and develop sports and games in the province, and lay down the general policy therefore.
- (ix) To ensure establishment of sports complex at Provincial, Divisional **(omitted by #)**, District, Tehsil Headquarters, permanent training and coaching centres, sports hostels reception centres in the province.
- (x) To exercise over all administrative/functional control over all the stadia and play fields in the Province, and ensure their proper maintenance and utilization.
- (xi) To ensure adequate provision of play fields allied facilities and equipment in the Province.
- (xii) **(Omitted by #)**
- (xiii) To ensure adequate provision of funds of sports and games in the budget of local councils and other institutions and their utilization to the fullest advantage for promotion and development of Sports.
- (xiv) To organize annual youth competitions of various age groups in the different games.
- (xv) To support talent in various games.
- (xvi) To provide incentive to prominent sportsmen, promising/deserving players and organizers by granting rewards/scholarships/honoraria etc.
- (xvii) To arrange production of films and publication of literature and to establish reading facilities for the promotion and development of sports.
- (xviii) To encourage and promote formation of clubs at District and Tehsil levels.
- (xix) To ensure the # **availability** of funds for Sports facilities in the industrial/commercial, concerns, and to arrange employment for sportsman in the commercial concerns, Government / Semi-Government organizations and autonomous bodies etc.
- (xx) To maintain liaison with all Central/Provincial Government, Semi-Government Departments/Agencies for effective implementation of the policies regarding promotion and development of sports and games.

- (xxi) **(Substituted by #)** To keep liaison with all District Coordination Officers/Deputy District Officers/Tehsil/Town Municipal Officers in the Province to ensure effective functioning of Sports Committees and Associations for the projection of policies of the Government and the Board.
- (xxii) To approve the annual budget.
- (xxiii) To ensure that grants given are utilized for the purpose and in accordance with the objects for which these are given.
- (xxiv) To do generally all such acts and take such steps as it consider necessary and conducive to achieving its aims and objects.

11. Powers of the Board:-

The Board shall have full powers:-

- (a) To register provincial sports associations and other sports organizations on such terms and conditions as may be prescribed under rules and regulations.
- (b) **(Substituted by #)** To allocate grants-in-aid to registered provincial associations, clubs and other sports organizations in the province of Punjab. The Board shall also be authorized to devise a criteria for the grant of aid to such associations, clubs and organizations’:
- (c) To take such disciplinary action as may be necessary against any sports association in the province, its office bearers or members or sportsmen in the interest of the sports and in order to maintain discipline.
- (d) To withhold grant to such association that violates any provision of its constitution, rules or bye-laws, or fails to carry out the directive of the Board.
- (e) **(Substituted by #)** To manage property of the Board with the prior approval of the Government for the promotion of sports.;
- (f) **(Substituted by #)** To appoint and determine the terms and conditions of service of the employees and to regularize the services of existing employees of the Board as deemed fit.
- (g) To associate and engage any person whose assistance or advice is considered necessary for the promotion or development of sports and to prescribe terms and conditions therefore; and
- (h) To frame, subject to the approval of Government, regulations for carrying out the purposes of this Constitution.

- (i) **(Inserted by #)** Recruit officers/officials in accordance with the service rules and the applicable recruitment policy of the Government.

12. (i) The General Meeting of the Board shall be held at least once a year and/or as and when required. A special meeting of the Board may also be held to transit any specific business when summoned by the :-

- (a) Chairman, or in his absence, the Vice-Chairman.
(b) Executive Committee.

- (ii) The Chairman, or in his absence, the Vice-Chairman shall preside over the meeting of the Board.

- (iii) To constitute a quorum, not less than # two third of the members shall be present.

13. **Omitted by #**

(14) (Omitted by #)

13-A. **(inserted by ##)**
Sports Councils of the Board -

- (1) There shall be Punjab Sports Council, Divisional Sports Council, District Sports Council or Tehsil Sports Council in respect of the Province, Division, District or Tehsil as the case may be.

- (2) The Composition of the Punjab Sports Council shall be as under:-

- | | |
|--|---------------|
| 1. Mian Hamza Shahbaz Sharif, MNA | Chairman |
| 2. Mr. Aamer Suhail | Vice-Chairman |
| 3. Mr. Baleegh-ur-Rehman, MNA | Member |
| 4. Mr. Muhammad Afzal Khokhar, MNA | Member |
| 5. Additional Chief Secretary Punjab | Member |
| 6. Secretary Youth Affairs, Sports, Archeology & Tourism Department | Member |
| 7. Inspector General of Police, Punjab. | Member |
| 8. Chief Executive Officer, Punjab Board of Investment & Trade. | Member |
| 9. Director General Sports Punjab/
Managing Director Sports Board Punjab | Secretary |
| 10. 02 Members of Civil Society Including women
(to be co-opted by the Punjab Sports Council) | Member |

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab Sports Department dated: 03-03-2006

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 09-12-2011

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 04-06-2012

- | | | |
|-----|---|--------|
| 11. | 02 Sports Veterans including Female to be co-opted by Punjab Sports Council | Member |
| 12. | Director public Instructions (School) | Member |
| 13. | Director Public Instructions (Colleges) | Member |
| 14. | Any other co-opted Member deemed necessary by the Council | Member |
- (3) The Composition of the Divisional, District and Tehsil Councils shall be such as may be determined by the Board from time to time.
- (4) The Provincial Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-
- (a) To promote and develop sports and games in the province and lay down general policy thereof.
 - (b) To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - (c) To encourage and promote development and maintenance of notified grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes at notified sites through private sponsorship in accordance with the approved policy by the Government.
 - (d) To formulate policy for outsourcing development, maintenance or operations of notified play fields, grounds, sites in accordance with the approved policy of the Government, wherever required.
 - (e) To associate, engage any person whose assistance or advice is considered necessary for the promotion or development of play fields, grounds, sports complexes and to prescribed terms and conditions thereof.
 - (f) To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (5) The Divisional Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-
- a) To promote and develop sports and games in the respective Division and lay down general policy thereof.
 - b) To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - c) To encourage and promote development and maintenance of notified grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes at notified sites through private sponsorship in accordance with the approved policy by the Government.

- d)** To formulate policy for outsourcing development, maintenance or operations of notified play fields, grounds, sites in accordance with the approved policy of the Government, wherever required.
 - e)** To associate, engage any person whose assistance or advice is considered necessary for the promotion or development of play fields, grounds, sports complexes and to prescribe terms and conditions thereof.
 - f)** To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (6) The District Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-
- a)** To promote and develop sports and games in the respective District and lay down general policy thereof.
 - b)** To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - c)** To encourage and promote development and maintenance of notified grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes at notified sites through private sponsorship in accordance with the approved policy by the Government.
 - d)** To formulate policy for outsourcing development, maintenance or operations of notified play fields, grounds, sites in accordance with the approved policy of the Government, wherever required.
 - e)** To associate, engage any person whose assistance or advice is considered necessary for the promotion or development of play fields, grounds, sports complexes and to prescribed terms and conditions thereof.
 - f)** To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (7) The Tehsil Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions: -
- a)** To device methodology for maintenance of the grounds in accordance with local sport playing community.
 - b)** To device methodology for organizing events and sharing the use of developed play fields in coordination with local sports playing community.
 - c)** To provide guidelines for establishment of suitable / desirable sports facilities at the respective play fields.
 - d)** To encourage effective participation of local community in using of sports facilities at notified play fields.

- e) To facilitate registration of the local Sports Clubs, Associations with concerned Authorities.
 - f) To perform all such functions as may be assigned by the Board or the Provincial Sports Council or Divisional Sports Council or District Sports Council, in this regard.
- (8) Without prejudice to the general powers and functions enumerated in above said sub-sections, the Board may by notification assign any other function to the respective councils.

13(B) Inserted by ## – Establishment of Executive Committee of Sports Council

**13-B. (Inserted by ##)
Executive Committees of Sports Council-**

- (1) There shall be Executive Committees of Sports Councils constituted under section-13-A.
- (2) The Composition of Executive Committees shall be such as may be determined by the Board from time to time.
- (3) The Executive Committee of Provincial Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-
 - a) To notify Government Land and Parks to be developed and maintained as Play Fields, Sports Complexes etc.
 - b) To manage the notified property of the Government and to cause development of the same into grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes thereon in accordance with the approved policy of the Government.
 - c) To organize, promote, develop and maintain Play Fields, Sports Complexes in the Province at the notified sites / areas.
 - d) To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - e) To exercise overall administrative and functional control of notified sites, areas and play fields in the Province and to ensure their proper maintenance.
 - f) To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (4) The Executive Committee of Divisional Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-

- a) To notify Government Land and Parks to be developed and maintained as Play fields, Sports Complexes etc.
 - b) To manage the notified property of the Government and to cause development of the same into grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes thereon in accordance with the approved policy of the Government.
 - c) To organize, promote, develop and maintain Play Fields, Sports Complexes in the respective Division at the notified sites / areas.
 - d) To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - e) To exercise overall administrative and functional control of notified sites, areas and play fields in the respective Division and to ensure their proper maintenance.
 - f) To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (5) The Executive Committee of District Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions: -
- a) To notify Government Land and Parks to be developed and maintained as Play fields, Sports Complexes etc.
 - b) To manage the notified property of the Government and to cause development of the same into grounds, play fields and establishment of Sports Complexes thereon in accordance with the approved policy of the Government.
 - c) To organize, promote, develop and maintain Play Fields, Sports Complexes in the respective District at the notified sites / areas.
 - d) To carry out activities for establishment of sports facilities, complexes at the notified sites / areas.
 - e) To exercise overall administrative and functional control of notified sites, areas and play fields in the respective District and to ensure their proper maintenance.
 - f) To carry out activities and to take such steps as are considered necessary and conducive for achievement of above said aims and objectives.
- (6) The Executive Committee of Tehsil Sports Council shall have powers to perform following functions:-
- a) To ensure provision of notified land free from all encumbrances to the Sponsors as approved by the Punjab Sports Council.

- b) To ensure provision of sites / areas in accordance with the approved specifications for advertisement by the Sponsors as approved by the Executive Committee of Punjab Sports Council.
 - c) To ensure management of play fields in accordance with the approved policy of the Government.
 - d) To ensure maintenance of play fields in accordance with the specified parameters as approved by Punjab Sports Council.
 - e) To perform all such functions as may be assigned by the Government or the Punjab Sports Council, or Divisional Sports Council or District Sports Council.
- (7) Without prejudice to the general powers and functions enumerated in above said sub-sections, the Board may by notification assign any other functions to the respective Executive Committees of Sports Councils.

**13-C. (Inserted by ###)
Union Sports and Youth Development Councils-**

- (1) There shall be Sports and Youth Development Councils in respect of each Union Council in the Province.
- (2) The composition and powers of the Union Sports Youth Development Council shall be such as may be determined by the Board from time to time.

13-D. (Inserted by ###)

Sports and Youth Development Councils at Neighborhood / Village Level-

- (1) There shall be 10-No. Male and 05-No. Female totaling 15-Sports and Youth Development Councils at Neighborhood / Village level in all Union Councils of the Punjab.
- (2) These Councils shall comprise of 07-Members including Chairman or the Chairperson as the case may be.
- (3) These councils shall be apolitical, inclusive and diversified in composition and constitution. Appropriate representation of minorities shall also be ensured in said Councils.
- (4) These councils shall be constituted on geographically contiguous societies / areas so as to ensure maximum participation of the residents in sports, cultural and recreational activities.
- (5) Establishment of these councils should be carried out by the District Sports Councils constituted under section 13-A, sub-section (6)

- (6) The composition and powers of these councils shall be such as may be determined by the Board from time to time.

(Inserted by ###)

13-E. Re-designation of Sports Councils as Sports and Youth Development Councils

The Councils constituted under section 13-A shall be re-designated a Sports and Youth Development Councils.

13-F. (Insertion by ###) – Re-designation of Executive Committees of Sports Councils

The Executive Committees constituted under section **13(B)** shall be re-designated as Executive Committees of the Sports and Youth Development Councils.

15. (Substituted by #) “Emergency Decisions”

All emergent administrative or financial decisions shall be taken in a meeting of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and Secretary of the Board unanimously, provided that all such decisions are to be reported to the board for approval”.

16. (Substituted by #) Function, Powers and duties of the Secretary of the Board.

- (i) The Managing Director Sports Board Punjab, shall be the ex-officio Secretary of the Board. He shall provide the permanent Secretariat for the Board.
- (ii) The Secretary shall;-
- (a) be responsible to the Board for the implementation of its policies, objectives and directions;
 - (b) sanction expenditure in accordance with the Delegation of Financial Powers of the Board;
 - (c) Make recommendation for appointment of coaches and other staff to the Chairman/ Vice Chairman;
 - (d) Have powers to check and inspect accounts and general working of the provincial games and sports associations, the District and Tehsil/Town sports committees.
 - (e) Submit the annual report and the audited accounts together with balance sheet to the Board for approval;

- (f) initiate disciplinary proceedings against the officials of the Board in accordance with the relevant rules; and
- (g) Perform such other functions as may be assigned to him by the Board”.

(17 to 23 omitted by #)

24. (Substituted by #) District Sports Committee--

There shall be a District Sports Committee in every district, consisting of

- | | |
|---|--------------|
| (a) District Coordination Officer | (Chairman) |
| (b) Two or three members of National / Provincial Assembly of the district to be nominated by the Chairman. | (members) |
| (c) Three/four elected members of local councils to be nominated by the Chairman for a period of two years. | (members) |
| (d) District Police Officer/CCPO of the district. | (member) |
| (e) Executive District Officer (Finance & Planning) | (member) |
| (f) Executive District Officer (Community Development) | (member) |
| (g) Executive District Officer (Education) | (member) |
| (h) Assistant Director of Local Government. | (member) |
| (i) Five non official members to be nominated by the District Coordination Officer with at least one from each Tehsil/Town. | (members) |
| (j) Three representatives of District Sports Associations to be appointed in rotation for a period of two years | (members) |
| (k) Two philanthropist/industrialists to be nominated by the Chairman for a period of two years. | (members) |
| (l) Three female members to represent women sports to be nominated by the Chairman for a period of two years. | (members) |
| (m) One principal each of Government colleges (male) and (female). | (members) |
| (n) One Headmaster. | (member) |
| (o) One Headmistress. | (member) |

(p) District Sports Officer/Organizer (member/ex-officio secretary)

25. (As substituted by #) Powers and functions of District Sports Committee:-

The District Sports Committee shall have the powers to;

- (i) register district sports organizations and clubs on such terms and conditions as may be prescribed;
- (ii) Make grants-in-aid to such sports organizations as are registered with it or a Tehsil/Town Sports Committee of the district;
- (iii) Take such disciplinary action as may be necessary against any district sports organization and club in the district, its office bearers, or individuals in the interest of the game and in order to maintain discipline; and
- (iv) The grant post facto sanction of the expenditure incurred by the Chairman”.

26.

- (i) The accounts of the District Committee shall be audited in such manner as may be prescribed.
- (ii) The Chairman shall have the powers to sanction and incur expenditure for organization and promotion of sports in the district subject to such limits as may be prescribed.
- (iii) Collect share in the income of the Local Councils in accordance with policy instructions of the Government.
- (iv) The fund of District Sports Committee shall include:-
 - (a) Annual grant-in-aid from the Board.
 - (b) Special grants-in-aid from the Board
 - (c) Donations.
 - (d) Income from tournaments, matches, camps, stadia, local councils and properties.

27. The Committee shall meet at least once in six months. For a meeting, 1/3rd of the members of the Committee shall form the quorum. The Chairman may, however, call additional meetings of the District Committee as he may deem necessary.

28. (As Substituted by #) “Tehsil/Town Sports Committee”

In every Tehsil or Town of a district, as the case may be, there shall be constituted a committee called the Tehsil/Town Sports Committee comprising of the:-

- | | | |
|-----|---|-------------------------------|
| (a) | Deputy District Officer (Revenue). | (Chairman) |
| (b) | 1 or 2 elected members of Provincial Assembly to be nominated by the Chairman. | (member)(s) |
| (c) | Two elected members of local councils to be nominated by the Chairman. | (members) |
| (d) | Sub Divisional Police Officer. | (member) |
| (e) | Tehsildar of the Tehsil. | (member) |
| (f) | Deputy District Officer (Edu) | (member) |
| (g) | Two female members to represent women sports to be nominated by the Chairman for a period of two years | (members) |
| (h) | Three non-official members from Sports associations to be nominated by the Chairman for a period of two years | (members) |
| (i) | Two philanthropists/individual to be nominated by the Chairman for period of two years. | (members) |
| (j) | One principal (male) / (female) | (member) |
| (k) | One Headmaster | (member) |
| (l) | One Headmistress. | (member) |
| (m) | Tehsil Sports Organizer. | (member/Ex-Officio Secretary) |

29. (As Substituted by #) “Powers and functions of Tehsil / Town Sports Committee”

The Committee shall have the powers to:-

- (i) register the tehsil sports organizations and clubs subject to such terms and conditions as may be prescribed;
- (ii) To make grants-in-aid to the tehsil sports organizations and clubs; and

- (iii) Take such disciplinary action as may be deemed necessary against any Sports club in the tehsil, its office bearers or individuals in the interest of the game and in order to maintain discipline.
30. (i) The accounts of the Committee shall be audited in such manner as may be prescribed.
- (ii) The Fund of the Tehsil Sports Committee shall include:-
- (a) Grant-in-aid from the Board.
- (b) Income from Local councils/District Committees.
- (c) Donations, income from tournaments, matches, stadia and properties.

31. Teh. Committee shall meet at least once in six months. For a meeting 1/3rd of the members of the Committee shall form the quorum.

32. Registration:-

The Provincial Sports Association shall be registered with the Sports Board Punjab subject to such terms and conditions as may be prescribed under rules and regulations.

Provided that any other Sports Organization in the Province may be registered with the Board subject to such conditions as the Board Rules and Regulations may prescribe.

(33) (Omitted by #)

34. The District Sports Organizations and clubs shall be registered with the District Sports Committees subject to such terms and conditions as may be prescribed through Rules and Regulations.

35. The Tehsil Sports Organizations and clubs shall be registered with the Tehsil Sports Committee as may be prescribed under Rules and Regulations.

36. Penalties:-

Wherever a Provincial Sports Association, District, Tehsil Sports Organization or a club is found to violate its Constitution, Rules / Bye-laws, the Board, District, Tehsil Committee, as the case may be, shall be competent to cancel the registration of such an association, organization or club. Provided that no such order of cancellation shall be made without giving the Association, Organization, club, an opportunity of being heard;

Provided further that an appeal against an order of cancellation under this clause shall lie with the Board.

37. Funds, Accounts and Audit:-

- Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab Sports Department dated: 03-03-2006
 ## - Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 09-12-2011
 ### - Sign denote amendment Govt. of the Punjab YASA&T Department dated: 04-06-2012

- (1) There shall be a fund known as the Sports Board Punjab Fund.
 - (2) The fund shall consist of:
 - (a) The grants made by Government.
 - (b) Donations made by any person, institution or organization.
 - (c) Income accruing from any property of the Board or its investment.
 - (d) Loan raised or obtained by the Board with the prior approval of the Government; and
 - (e) all other sums receivable by the Board.
 - (3) The Board shall utilize the funds provided by the Government as grant-in-aid for the promotion and development of sports and games in the Province.
 - (4) The funds of the Board shall be maintained in such manner as prescribed by the Government in this behalf.
 - (5) The fund shall be utilized for encouragement and furtherance of the games, sports and any other purpose incidental or ancillary to the purposes of this Constitution.
38. The accounts of the Board shall be audited once in every financial year by the Accountant General Punjab or his nominee.
39. The audit report shall be submitted to the Board and with the comments of the Board to Government, and the Board shall comply with any directions issued by Government for rectification of an audit objection.
- 40 (Omitted by #)**
41. The accounts of the Board shall operated by the Secretary of the Board.
42. **General Provisions:-**
- Government may give such directions to the Board or require it to furnish such documents, returns, statements or any other information regarding any matter under the control of the Board, and the Board shall comply with such directions or requisition.
43. **(Substituted by #)** The Chairman and the Secretary of the Board, Districts and Tehsil / Town Sports Committees shall exercise such powers and perform such functions as may be prescribed through Rules and Regulations.
44. The Board, may subject to the approval of the Government, frame Rules and Regulations not inconsistent with the provisions of this Constitution to manage and run the affairs of the Board.

By Order of the Governor, Punjab
Sd/-

Lahore 8 April, 1985

**Secretary to Government of the Punjab,
Education Department**